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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (if known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

. The earliest portions of the building used originally by the Academy
of Richmond County and presently part of Augusta Museum, was constructed in
1802. This Academy was established in 1785 as the first such institution .
of its kind and appears today much as it did in 1856-7 when William Henry
Goodrich was in charge of remodeling the original structure in the Tudor-
Gothic Revival style. The exact appearance of the original structure is
not known but it is believed that the central section of the present building
(45'x36"') is probably the 1802 portion of the building. External alterations
made in the mid-nineteenth century include the addition of two wings (33'x100
the dripstone of molded brick above all of the windows, and the cast iron
clustered columns on the front facade portico.

A ¢.1880 engraving of the Academy shows the two story building very
much as it exists today. 'Whe building is made of brick, stuccoed and scored
to resemble stone blocks. On both sides of a recessed central portion are
two lower, rectangular wings joined across the central portion of the front
facade by a portico. This one story portico has Tudor arches supported by
clustered columns. Steps lead to the entrance of the portico. Crenellated
parapets define the perimeter of the portico and roof's edge. Below the
crenellation is a molded brick cornice followed by a dripstone of molded
brick above the windows.#WpsAll windows have six-over-six lights except in the
higher central portion where there are nine-over-nine lights. A side facade
shows a small projecting one-story portico, with the same crenellation and
Tudor arches as across the front facade.

Presently the stucco covering on the bricks is flaking in some places,
but the building is otherwise in sound condition. A foyer was created in 196
with the addition of glass panels between the columns of the front portico.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Academy of Richmond County is significant not only for its very
fine YTudor-cothic design§ but as a part of a district which holds some of
Augusta's oldest structures. It is also a monument to the first act of
legislation in regard to public education, as well as a structure having
served as a military hospital during the Civil War, as a library, and
presently as a museum. A1t is one of few major landmarks of the Gothic
Revival style in Georgia.' (The old Capitol building at Milledgeville,

c. 1805, was an early national example in that mode.)

The Academy, now the Augusta Museum, is part of the historical 560
block of Telfaik and Walker Streets, which includes the Medical College
building, already on the National Register. Some of the oldest buildings
in Augusta are to be found here. To the east of the museum lies an open
grassed tract, covered with shadetrees, long a temptation for many-of
those looking for land on which to build new administrative buildings for
the growing city and county government.

Historically, the Academy is a hallmark for Georgia public education
system. The earliest legislation in regard to public education in Georgia
is found in an act for "laying out reserve land in the town of Augusta into
acre lots, \the erecting of an academy or seminary of learning...July 31, 17§
In order to obtain the means for such an undertaking so soon after the
Revolutionary War, the town commissioners were directed to lay out these
reserve lands (obtained from forfeiture of wmnimproved royval grants and the
Public Reserve) into lots and sell them. The proceeds from these sales
were, among other things, to erect an academy. The Academy was opened
March 25, 1785, and is said to be "the oldest seat of learning in the
United States with the exception of Yale, Harvard, and Princeton." It was
visited and complimented by George Washington in 1790. The first Academy
building on Bay Street whiech Washirigton vimgtef, deteriorated, causing the
school to be closed until a new building on Telfair Street was completed
in 1802. This building is a portion of the preseat structure.

\The Academy continued in successful operation until after the Battle
of Chickamauga when it was used by the Confederate authorities as an
administrative building for a hospita§§s‘The Academy was reopened as a
school in 1868 and occupied until 1926.

From 1929 until 1960, the Young Men's Library Association used the

ground floors of the building. During these years, the Museum collection
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in the National Register and certify that it has been
evaluated according to the criteria and procedures set
forth by the National Park Service. The recommended
level of significance of this nomination is:
National (] State, [# L.ocal

/A
3

Date ﬁ/,@

Chief, Office of Archeology and Hisgf§ric Preservation

4/(//7\5

0

Date

,/ ft(/b N
el

ATTEST:

Date

4 (772 | :

uim
s/ 4/057(
370360¢C
(P

338

SNOILONAYLSNI

A
7



Form 10-300q UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR STATE
(July 1969) NATIONAL PARK SERVICE

Georgia
NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES [cOounTY
INVENTORY - NOMINATION FORM Richmond
FOR NPS USE ONLY
(Continuation Sheet) ENTRY NUEP;ERI I & DATE

(Number all entries)

8. Significance

to the Augusta Museum collection.
The Board of Trustees of the Academy of Richmond County still oversees

the uses of the Academy building since this structure was given to be used
continuously for educational purposes.

9. Major Bibliographical References

Hill, Raymond D., Executive Director, Historic Augusta, Inc. Presented
first draft of National Register form, on file at GHC.

Nichols, F.D., Early Architecture of Georgia. (Chapel Hill: University of
North Carolina Press, 1957).

was displayed on the upper floors. At present the entire building is given ov
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